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R.epublic of the Philippines
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DliEr &'li 1?{l-'i,(-

lt4E, -4'.4k.ffi\ -

l\{arch 15,2018

The Boarcl of Directors
Poro Point Management Corporation
Citl, of San Fertrando, La Union

l)ear Sirs:

We transmit herewith tire report on the financial and compliance audit of the

accounts and operations of the Poro Point Mauagement Corporatiort" City of San

Fernanclo, LaUnion for the year ended December 31,2011, in compliar-rce with Section

2, A1ic1e IX - D of the Philippine Constitution and pertinent Sections of Presidential

Decree No. 1445.

The audit rvas conducted to asceftain the propriety of financiai transactions and

cornpliance rvith prescribed rules and regulations as well as the efficiency and

effectiveness of operations. It rvas also made to ascertain the accuracy of finarlcial
records and repofis, as well as the fairness of the presentatiou of the flnancial statemellts.

The repor-t consists of three parls: Pafi I * Audited Financial Statements, Fart II -
Auclit Observations and Recomrnendations and Part III - Status of Prior Years' Audit
Recomnrendations. The observatious and recommendations were discttssed r,vith the

corrcerned rnatiagement officials and staffin an exit conference helcl onFebmary 9,2018.
\lanasement's comments are inclttded in the report, where appropriate.

We rendered an unqualified opinion on the fair presentation of the Financial

Stateutents as to the financial position of the Poro Point Management Corporation as ol
Decenrber 31, 2017, and the results of its operations and cash florvs fbr the -vear then

eniled in conformity rvith Philippine Financial Repofiing Standards (PFRS).

The tbllori'inq are the significant obsen ations and recommendations lor the C\'
l'-' I -

. Cash adt'ances were resor-ted to rn the procurellelll and pa\'tttettt of supplies arlci

lteals c1r-rrinq the condlict olCorporate Plartnins in \-igart Ciil. Ilocos SLtr. The ri<e :'.

tlte Cash Adrance tbr the purchase ol tire reqular sLrp.plies is coutt':ir'. tr COr'
Ci:-ctrlat'\o 97-Qt)l datecl Febnrarr' 1U. 199r and SectiLtn I 1i+ I{cretli,c R-e-. .,, .



No 2-98 dated -{pril i 7, 1998, as this tantamounts to evasion of the proper
imposition of tares to the sellers/suppliers and audit.

\\re recontutended that v-lanagement conduct procLrrement for the Corporate Planning
or altv other events of the Agency in strict accordance with Sections 48.1, 52.1.b and

,<3 9 of 1016 Rer.ised hnplementing Rules and Regulations (IRR) of RA 9184. The

supplies needed should be procured from the Procurement Service (PS) -DBNI lor
ordinary supplies and shopping may be resorted if iterns are not available at the

Procurement Service (PS) -DBN4 andlor Small-Vah-re Procurement for other sr"rpplies.

2. Bid security booked under Other Payables - Bid Bond Payable accouut amounting to
P71,408.63 remained outstanding as of December 31,2017 despite the release of the

Notice of Award of the rvinning bidder contrary to Section 27.4 of Revised

Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR) of R.A. 9184. Also, perlonnance security
booked under Guaranty/Security Deposit Payable amounting to P39,873.00 remained

outstanding as of December 31,201,7 due to the inabtion of Management to isstte a

Certificate of Completion on time despite the expiration of the insurance coverage.

We recommended that Management take the following courses of action:

a. Communicate to the bidders regarding the return of their bid security in order to
facilitate its refund since contract had already signed and performance security
rvas already posted by the ivinning bidder;

b. Issue a Certificate of Completion to the winning Contractor/Insurance Provider
since the latter insr-lrauce coverage had already erpired; and

c. Conduct strict monitoring on the receipt of bid bonds and performance bonds in
order to ellsure proper refund/return of these bonds to the bidder or u,'inuiug

bidders.

3. Management's complacency in firmly imposing the deadline in finisliing the

construction of baywalk with events center costing P60,156,383 46led to the evident

delay in the cornpletion of the project and consequently Management's oppofiunitv to
generate revenues therefrom. This is tantamount to Management's noll-compliartce
with Section 2 ol the Presidential Decree 1445 (PD 1445) or the Govemilent
Auditing Code of the Philippines.

We recommended that Management cease to be contplacent ani Cr-1rttti1 :.:-
contractor to immediately finish the project It is also rec.ruttnet'Liei:.t:: ;
unjustified delay of the contractor be imposed with iiquidated dantageS ?S I.r ti.-:..:.
the impmdence exhibited by the latter as required under Sectron S I ci-\nire:i E :'.

the Revised iRR of RA 9l84.

We request that the comments and obsen,atlons and recorlnteitja,,,:lS ..r -- .:-

in the said report be fu1ly addressed and rve u'ou1d appreciate bei:r-q ':l-l:..-r'.;- - . :
actiolt taken in this regard rvithin sirty (60) clavs tiortr recerpt here.-,-. :'.ir!,.:.r. .- !:-,



88 of the General Provisions of Republic Act No. 10924, otherwise known as the General
Appropriations Act of 1017. by accomplishing the Agency Action Plan and Status of
Implenrentation attached hereu,ith.

\\re acknon,iedge the cooperation extended to the audit team by the officrals and

statf ofthe aqenc\'.

Very truly yours,

MTqIIAEL R. BACANIaJ/
OlClRegionalDirector U
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A. Introductiorr

T1.re Poro Point }rlanagement Corporatiort (PPMC) was created and registered
rvith the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as the operating and
implementilrg arm of the Bases Conversion and Development Authority (BCDA.1 to
1.na11aqe the Poro Point Speciai Economic and Freepofi Zone (PPSEFZ), nou, Poro
Point Freeporl Zone (PPFZ) pursuant to Republic Act (RA) No.9400 (An Act
Arrrending RA No.722J, as amended, otherwise known as the Bases Conversion and
Deveiopment Act of 7992, and Other Purposes). PPMC's scope of responsibilitl,
encompasses the former Wallace Air Station in Poro Point, La Union. home to
Tlunderbird Resorls, tl're San Fernando Airporl and the San Fernando International
Seaporl.

B. Financial Highlights

Presented below is the summary of comparative financial highlights ibr the

CYs 2016-2017

2017 2016
Percentage
of Change

Assets P 186.070.933.93 Pt74.789"341.56 6 -159 o

Liabilities 96.323.846.t8 92,056.738.90 1 640, o

Government Equity 89"747.487.75 82.732.602 66 8 -189/o

Income 64,640.101.73 62,586,A89.74 3 289,o

Expenses P s3.10s.414.64 P 52"509.254.12 l r4%

20t7 2416
Percentage
of Change

Budset P62,425,187.91 P58,978,731.0A s 849.6

Actual Expenditures P 53"145.4t4.64 P52"509.254.12 1.149,'0

C. Scope of Audit nnd Nlethodology

A comprehensive audit was conducted on the accounts and operations of Poro
Point lVlanagement Corporation forthe year ended December 31, 2017. It u,as airned
at erpressirlg an opinion as to whether the financial statements preseltt f'airly the
Corporation's financial position, results ol operations and cash flor.vs ancl at

determining the Corporation's compliance with pertinent 1aws, rules and resulations.
as u,e11 as tire effrciency and et'fectiveness of operations.



D. Autlitor's Opinion on the Financial Stltements

The Auditor rendered an unqualified opinion ou the fhir presentation of the

Financial Statements as to the financial position of the Poro Poiut \4anagetrtettt

Corporation as ol Decernber 31,2017, and the results of its operations attci caslt

flows fbr the year then ended in confotmity with Philippine Financial Reponin-iri

Standards (PFRS).

E. Significant Audit Observations and Recommelldttions

Irr the concluct of audit tbr C\' 2011. favorable observations \\ere lrotecl es

presented belorv:

l. lrnplementation of Gender and Development (GAD) activities resLrlted in the

conduct of women capacity building, promotion of GAD alvarelless. GAD
trairrings and family and employee activity totaling to P471,,749.22, r.ihich rvere

fbr-rncl in cornplialce with District's GAD Plan and Budget. As a result, the

irro-qranls, activities and projects addressing gender issues, monitorirtg, evaluatittq
and enhancing the agency's gender mainstreaming and women's elltpoweriltent
etlbrts, were attaitred.

\Ve commended the Corporatiorr for dutifirlly compliant and responsive to the

irnplementation of GAD activities.

2. The Corporation ra,ithheld and renritted taxes amounting to P8.461,754.1i ancl

P8,943,597.71 as of December 31, 2017, respectively rvhich is contposecl of
various taxes on compensation, purchases {iom suppliers/coutracts, taxes ott lter
diems, fringe benef-it tax and corporate income tax. Hence, tire Distt'ict was lbund
compliaut to their tax obligations.

We comrneuded the Corporation fbr dutilirlly cornpliant on their tar obligations

Horvever, presented below is a summary of the significant Ar-rdit Obserr''atiorts

and Recommendations. These were discr:ssed with the agertcy ofticials cottcerttecl

cluring the e.xit confbrence and their corresponding comments were incorporated irt

Part lI of the reporl. where appropriate:

I . Cash advances were resorted to in the procrirelneut and paymellt of sr,rpplies an.i

rneals during the conduct of Corporate Planninu in Vigan Cin'. Ilocos Sr.tr. Thc

use of the Cash Advance for the purchase oi the regular sLrpplies is cotrtran t.r

COA Circular No. 9'7-0AZ dated Febmarl' 10. 1997 ancl Sectioit I 1l-l F.e-,c:t,,=

Resulation No. 2-98 clatecl April 17, 1998. as this tilntAntolrtts lrr i-.r.i,"' '::'::
proper inrposition oltares to the sellers,'stt1l1lliers arlcl atiLlri

\\-e recottlllletldecl that \larlaqemellt ctlndLlct Lrrtrcure:l-::. ' - - ' '' - ' :
P1:nning or altv other evettts of the -\qetlcr irl stri:i 'liJ- ---,-' 

.--: ):-



48.I, 52.l.b and 53.9 of 2016 Revised Implementing Rules ancl Regulations (IRR)
of RA 9184. The supplies needed should be procured fi'om the Procurenrent
Seryice (PS) -DBlvl for ordinary supplies and shoppilrg may be resorted if items
are not available at the Procurement Service (PS) -DBI{ anci,'or Srra11-\'a1ue
Procurement for other supplies.

2. Bid security booked under Other Payables * Bid Bond Par,abie accollnt
arnounting to P71,408.63 rernained outstanding as of December -11, luil desprre

the release of the Notice of Award of the winning bidder co11traly to Sectiern l7 J
of Revised Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR) of R.A. 91S-l {lso.
perfbrmance security booked under Guaranty/Security Deposrt Par able
amounting to P39,873.00 remained outstanding as of Decernber 3i,l0ll ciue tt..

the inaction of Mana-qernent to issue a Cerlificate of Completion on tinre desprite

the expiration ofthe insurance coverage.

We recommended that Management take the ficllowing courses of action.

Communicate to the bidders regarding the return of their bid security in order
to facilitate its refund since contract had already signed and performance
security was already posted by the winning bidder;

Issue a Certificate of Completion to the winning Contractor/Insurance
Provider since the latter insurance coverage had already expired; and

Conduct strict monitoring on the receipt of bid bonds and performance bonds
in order to ensure proper refund/return of these bonds to the bidder or winning
bidders.

3. IVlanagernent's cornplacency in firmly imposing the deadline in finishing the
construction of baywalk with events center costing P60,156,383.46 led to the
evident delay in tl-re completion of the project and consequently N{anagement's
opportunity to generate revenues therefiom. This is tantaillount to Managerllent's
non-compliance with Section 2 of the Presidential Decree 1445 (PD 1445) or tlre
Government Auditing Code of the Philippines.

We recommended tirat lVlanagement cease to be complacent and compel the
colltractol' to immediately finish the project. It is also recornmended that the
unjustified delay of the contractor be imposed .,vith iiquidated damaqes as to
penalize the imprudence exhibited by the latter as required under Section 8 1 of
Annex E of the Revised IRR of RA 9184.

F. Summary of Audit Suspensions, Dis:rllorvances and Charges

For the CY 2017, PPIVIC has no olrtstalrdinq susprensii.ns and char{es.
however, disallowances totaling to P1.1i4.90-1 05 are undei- apr-.ra1

a.



G. Status of Prior Year's Audit Reconrmendations

Al1 of the tlrree audit recommendations contained in the previor:s )re 2t-'s

Annual Ar-rdit Repofi rvere lull.v implernentecl.
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PART I

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Republic of the PhiliPPines
COMMISSION ON AUDIT

Offrce of the Supervising Auditor
CGS 7-A WATER DISTRICTS AND
OTHER STAND ALONE AGENCIES

Regional Office No. 1

City of San Fernancto, La Union

INDtrPtrNDENT A UDITOR'S REPORT

THE BOARD OB DIRE,CTORS
Poro Point i\'Ianageinent Corporation
Poro Point Freepofi Zone
Cit1, of Sau Fernando, La Union

We have auclited the accon'rpanying financial statements of the Poro Point N{atragetleut

Corporatiol, a wholiy-ownecl subsidiary of the Bases Conversation and Developurertt

Autirority (BCDA), which comprise the statement of financial position as of Deceuber
j l. 20 li, antl t|e stafelrent of comprehensive income, statement of changes itl eqtrity and

statemellt of cash florvs fbr the year then ended, and a summary of signiticant accottutitls

policies and otiter explanatory information.

l'I t r n u g e m e nt' s Re sp o n si bil itv .fb r th e Fi nunc i al St ate me n ts

lVlalagerrelt is responsible for the preparation and f"tir presentation of these f-nlancial

stateltents i1 accordance r,vitir Philippine Financial and Reporling Standards (PFRS)

This responsibility inclucles, designing, irnplementing ancl maintaining itrtenlal colltroi

relevantio tlie preparation ancl fair presentation of financial statements that are tl'ee il'orlr

rnaterial uri sstatement.

Au t I itor's Re,spon sih il ily

Our responsibility is to erpress an opinion on these financial statetlretlts base.i rrrl i'..,'

auclit. We concluctecl our auclit in accordance rvith lau's, COA and 1NTOS-\1 sI;',:'*.,-.:.

anci applicable Philippine Pr:blic Sector Standards on Auditing These star.idariis r:r"-..=

that we comply wiili ethical requirements and plan and pertbrrn the audit t. "'--. '---

reasonable asslirance about whether the financial statements are lree il'ot't'i rll,,-'- ..
nrisstatenlent.

\t alLciit rnr.olr'es ltertbrminq procedures to obtain atrdit evidetlce about the atl'to'-ttr:r .,---.

rlisclLr:L.tres in tite t-rnancial statenlents. The procedures selected depend on the ALtCit.'i. .

_, .-.:.:t:te:ri. ,r::lLrdin.'ir rhe assessnteirt of the risks of material nlisstatetllellt oithe firl:l;;-.--:,,.=,,a,-,. 
.i,.1a i.. i'aui trl error In making those risk assessulellts. tile auclitol'Ci'il:i-;-'

-.'.:-.,. :-.::t'-.. :';ic,. anr to the entitv s Lrreparation atid tair preselltatiotl oi the Ilr-.-. : .,



statemellts in orcler to design auclit proceclures that are appropriate in the circutnstallces

An auclit also i,clr-rdes asseising the accounting principles used and the reasonabletless ol

accogt1ti1g estimates macle by management, as well as evaluating the overall preserltatiorl

of the financiai statements. we believe that the audit evidence rve hal'e obtained is

sufficient a1d apirropriate to provide a basis for our unqualified oiriniol'

Opinion

I, our opiniol the accompanying financial statements present fairiy the finarlcial positiorl

of the Poro Point H'tanaglrnent borporation as of December 31, 2011, and the results of

its operations and casir no.vs for the year then ended in conformity Philippiue Finatlcial

Repor-ting Stanclards (PFRS).

COMMISSION ON AI,JDIT

By.

February 23, 2018

2



PORO POINIT MANAGEMENT CORPORATTON
A Mernber of the BCDA Group

City of San Fernando, La Union
Tel. No. (072) 888-5954

STATEMEF{T OF MANAGEMENT' S RESPONS TBILITY

FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The rtranagernent of the Poro Point Management Corporation is responsible tbr the

preparation of the financial statement as at December 31,2017, including the additlonal
components attached thereto in accordance r,vith the prescribed financial reportinq
fl'amervorli indicated therein. The responsibility includes designirig and inrplernenting
intenral controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial state1ltellts

that are ti-ee iiom material statement whether due to liaud or error, selecting and appiying
appropriate accounting poiicies and making accounting estirnates that are reasonable in
the circr:rnstances.

The Board of Directors revienrs and approves the financial staternents betbre sr-rch

statements are issued to the regulators, creditors and other users.

The Commission on Audit has audited the financial statements of the Poro Point
Sector Stanclarcis ou
upon LOnrpletir')rt rrf

Management Corporation in accordance Philippine Public
Auditing and has expressed its opinion ofpresentation
such audit, in its reporl to the rectors.

RIGOR
Chairma bf the Board

Janr,rary 3 l, 2018
Date Signed

.{TT\.

January 31, 2018
Date Signed

January' 31. lSlS
Date Sigaed

S.Y(\C \DIOLE}I
Fin Pre> =t:,.,tr:1 L'E,,,



Notes 2017 2016

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash on Hand

Cash-Collecting Officer 2 P 1,729,463.92         P 160,090.42            

Cash in Bank 3

Cash in Bank-Local Currency, CA 3,435,835.85         6,784,702.16         

Cash in Bank-Local Currency, SA 25,116.16              71,754.32              

Cash Equivalents

Time deposits-Local Currency 4 6,993,741.96         6,937,416.85         

     Total 12,184,157.89       13,953,963.75       

Investments

Investments in Time Deposits

Invst. in Time Dep.-Loc. Currency 5 50,811,153.62       50,701,626.06       

Receivables

Loans and Receivables Account

Accounts Receivable 6 1,867,392.33         1,398,989.78         

Interest Receivable 98,604.65              79,538.90              

Intra-Agency Receivables

Due from BCDA 7 14,880,562.09       6,550,461.66         

Other Receivables

Due from Officers and Employees 8 465,456.96            527,635.81            

     Total 17,312,016.03       8,556,626.15         

Inventories 9

Inventory Held for Consumption

Office Supplies Inventory 1,135,389.86         981,732.23            

Accnt. Forms, Plates and Stickers Inv. 109,440.00            4,690.00                

Food Supplies Inventory 556,340.94            14,092.00              

Chem. and Filtering Supplies Inventory 53,050.25              45,208.45              

Construction Materials Inventory 249,826.25            250,006.25            

ASSETS

PORO POINT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION

(A Member of The BCDA Group)

Detailed Statement of Financial Position

As of December 31, 2017

(With comparative figures as of December 31, 2016)

4



Notes 2017 2016

Elect. Supplies and Materials Inv. 94,433.50              30,767.50              

     Total 2,198,480.80         1,326,496.43         

Other Assets

Advances

Advances to Officers and Employees -                         -                         

Prepayments 10

Advances to Contractors 1,172,604.34         2,225,244.46         

Prepaid Registration 40,769.57              30,799.95              

Prepaid Insurance 434,937.43            461,052.81            

Deposits

Guaranty deposits 11 168,884.00            168,884.00            

Other Assets

Other Assets 316,211.10            169,706.00            

     Total 2,133,406.44         3,055,687.22         

Total Current Assets P 84,639,214.78 P 77,594,399.61

Non-Current Assets

Investments 12

Investments in Joint Venture

Investments in Joint Venture 15,000,000.00       15,000,000.00       

Other Investments

Investment in Stocks 15,000.00              15,000.00              

     Total 15,015,000.00       15,015,000.00       

Investment Property 13

Land and Buildings

Investment Property, Land 21,441,469.65       21,441,469.65       

Investment Property, Buildings 6,676,047.56         6,676,047.56         

Construction in Progress

CIP-Invst. Property, Buildings 49,909,596.64       42,891,995.79       

     Total 78,027,113.85       71,009,513.00       

Property, Plant and Equipment 14

Land Improvements

Other Land Improvements 276,082.12            276,082.12            

Accum. Dep.-Other Land Imp. (262,278.01)           (262,278.01)           

Infrastructure Assets

Power Supply Systems 516,605.02            516,605.02            

Accum. Dep.-Power Supply Sys. (490,774.77)           (490,774.77)           

5



Notes 2017 2016

Buildings and Oher Structures

Buildings 6,309,335.20         6,309,335.20         

Accum. Dep.-Buildings (3,470,134.60)        (3,154,667.92)        

Other Structures 2,669,275.51         2,669,275.51         

Accum. Dep.-Other Structures (2,355,474.24)        (2,111,962.53)        

Machinery and Equipment

Office Equipment 5,282,020.13         4,683,871.00         

Accum. Dep.-Office Equipment (4,763,508.77)        (4,100,682.75)        

Info. and Comm. Tech. (ICT) Equip. 3,906,476.11         4,590,844.24         

Accum. Dep.-ICT Equipment (3,213,280.79)        (3,736,404.17)        

Communication Equipment 343,595.00            333,345.00            

Accum. Dep.-Comm. Equipment (329,906.75)           (301,809.58)           

Technical and Scientific Equipment 413,387.52            413,387.52            

Accum. Dep.-Tech. and Scientific Equip. (358,700.13)           (343,581.06)           

Furniture, Fixtures and Books

Furniture and Fixtures 2,256,063.49         2,188,063.49         

Accum. Dep.-Furniture and Fixtures (1,927,288.42)        (1,939,238.68)        

Transportation Equipment

Motor Vehicle 13,727,286.91       13,727,286.91       

Accum. Dep.-Motor Vehicle (12,864,974.59)      (11,070,259.73)      

Watercrafts 773,325.00            773,325.00            

Accum. Dep.-Watercrafts (335,341.93)           (260,469.97)           

     Total 6,101,789.01         8,709,291.84         

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets 15

Computer Software 695,724.13            695,724.13            

Accum. Dep.-Computer Software (675,248.23)           (654,927.07)           

     Total 20,475.90              40,797.06              

Other Assets

Other Assets

Other Assets 16 2,267,340.39         2,420,340.05         

Total Non-Current Assets 101,431,719.15     97,194,941.95       

TOTAL ASSETS P 186,070,933.93     P 174,789,341.56     

6



Notes 2017 2016

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Payables

Accounts Payable 17 P 6,466,735.35         P 5,279,554.14         

Inter-Agency Payables

Inter-Agency Payables

Due to BIR 305,124.44            275,883.87            

Due to Pag-ibig 147,627.54            108,166.62            

Due to Philhealth 26,935.00              27,375.00              

Due to SSS 167,050.68            160,727.61            

Income Tax Payable 774,186.48            975,160.60            

     Total 1,420,924.14         1,547,313.70         

Intra-Agency Payables

Intra-Agency Payables 18

Due to Other Funds 79,039.22              89,480.31              

Due to BCDA 61,549,589.16       58,228,682.10       

     Total 61,628,628.38       58,318,162.41       

Trust Liabilities

Trust Liabilities 19

Trust Liabilities 940,354.02            957,687.35            

Guaranty/Security Deposits Payable 75,275.60              75,275.60              

     Total 1,015,629.62         1,032,962.95         

Other Payables

Other Payables

Other Payables 20 7,354,818.93         7,441,635.94         

Total Current Liabilities 77,886,736.42       73,619,629.14       

Non-Current Liabilities

Intra-Agency Payables

Intra-Agency Payables

Due to BCDA 21 18,437,109.76       18,437,109.76       

Total Liabilities P 96,323,846.18       P 92,056,738.90       

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

7



Notes 2017 2016

Equity

Stockholders' Equity

Stockholders' Equity

Share Capital 22 68,143,720.23       68,143,720.23       

Other Equity Instruments 23 15,000,000.00       15,000,000.00       

     Total 83,143,720.23       83,143,720.23       

Retained Earnings/(Deficit)

Retained Earnings/(Deficit)

Retained Earnings/(Deficit) 6,603,367.52         (411,117.57)           

Total Equity 89,747,087.75       82,732,602.66       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P 186,070,933.93     P 174,789,341.56     

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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PORO POINT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
(A Member of The BCDA GrouP)

Detailed Statement of Comprehensive fncome

For the year ended December 3l ,2017
(With comparative figures as of December 31,2016)

Notes 2017

Revenues

Service and Business Income

Business Income
Management Fees

Interest Income

Miscellaneous Income

Miscellaneous Income

Total Revenues

Less: Expenses

24 P 62,789,975.00 P

932,587.62

25 qfl,slg.tt
64,64AJ01.73

2016

6 I .1 29.73 ] 00

802.e87.31

653.171.43

62,586,089.74

Personnel Sen'iccs
Salaries and Wages

Saltrrics and Wages-Regular

Other Conrpensation

Representation Allowance

Transportation Aliowance

C iothing/Uni lorm Allowance

0r enime and Nigtrt PaY

Year-End Bonus

Cash Gift
Other Ronuscs antl Allowartces

Personuel Benefit Clontributions

Pag-ibig Contributions
Philhealth Contributions

Emp. Comp. lnsutance Premiums

Pro','i dent/\\i e1f are C ontribution

Other Personnel Benetrt Cor-rtributions

R cti t'ctttcttt C rrttr itr

Othcr Persot-Lne I Benef it Contrib.

Total Personnel Sen'ices

72,844,682.96

640,800.00

640,800.00
103,782.00

7,098,175.37

1,071,756.89

286,500.00

3,231,457.22

69,000.00

140,512.00

19,720.00

632,444.48

1,042,816.10

1 2.1 5 1 .181.8 1

6-10.801).00

6-+0.800.00

68.15 (i.17

866.i 76 i 5

1.005.066.0t-)

3.180"9i(.i.4.+

67.4l1,15
135,537.-50

19.700.0t.)

594.081.95

1.145.366.17

21,822,117.02 20,515.620.61



Notes
Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses

Travelling Expenses

Travelling Expenses-Local

Training and Scholarship Expenses

Training Expenses

Supplies and Materials Expenses

Office Supplies Expenses

Accountable Forms Expenses

Food Supplies Expenses

Medical, Dental and Lab. Supplies Ex'
Fuel, Oil and Lubricants Expenses

Chemical and Filtering Supplies and E

Other Supplies and Materials Expense
Utility Expenses

Electricity Expenses

Communication Expenses
Postage and Courier Services
Telephone Expenses

Confi. Intelligence & Extraordinary Exp.
Extraordinary and Miscellaneous Exp.

Professional Services

Auditing Services

Consultancy Services

General Services
Janitorial Services

Security Services

Repair and Maintenance
Repair and Main.-Bldg. and Other Str
Repair and Main. -Transportation Equi
Repair and Main.-Furniture and Fixtut

Taxes, lnsurance Premiums and Other Fees

Taxes, Duties and Licenses
Fidelity Bond Premiums
Insurance Expenses 26
Income Tax Expenses

Other Maintenance and Operating Expenses

Advertising, Promotional ar: 27
Representation Expenses

Rent/Lease Expenses

Subscription Expenses

Dir. and Commiffee Members Fees

2017

3,596,009.91

1,520,995.74

2,249,749.11

87,774.50

2,504.00

504,163.13

57,055.05
108,2L2.60

889,969.30

88,992.13

I,281,561.57

468,993.70

1,298,547.79

287,916.31

459,731.04

64,966.39

22t,570.00
7,390.00

233,932.82

29,562.50

7,226,130.77
4,543-756.90

1.057,50,+.99

1.600.691.13

86.lU j. -5

1.6-19.Lrt-tit.t't, r

2016

2,675,701.42

1,388,574.00

1,661,539.45

3,000.00

1T2,795.97

22,515.40
465,583.03

104,276.17

38,194.07

1,244,738.19

69,657.0A
1,,173,906.56

409,409.70

1,169,447.06
70.) ))) ))

357,475.74

314,085.05

rag,a6g.63
7t9,954.41,
45,194.00

196,588.75

8,437.5A

1,671,569-22

3,974506-42

1j59,056.88
1"252,859,35

157.182.16

87,875-oCI

1,6t2-0(m.00



Notes 2017

Other Main and Other Oper. 28 6,051,502.29
Total Maint. and Other Oper. Exp- 29,664,488.11

20t6
6 5q? ?55 i.l

29,369,501.79

Non-Cash Expenses

Depreciation
Depreciation-Infrastructure Assets

Depreciation-Buildings and Other Stn
Depreciation-Machinery and Equipme
Depreciation-Transportation Equipme,
Depreciation-Fumiture, Fixtures and I

Amortization
Amortization-Intangible Assets

Total Non-Cash Expenses

Total Expenses

NET TNCOME / (LOSS)

ssg,gzs.:g
460,895.32

523,172.92
46,A15.12

45,202.67

6fi,485.75
595,064.52

1,247,16r.40
95,543.58

24,473.7929,417.16
1,618,479.51 2,624,131.70

53,105,414.64 52,509,254.12

11,534,687.09 P L0,076,835.62

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements



PORO POtr\IT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
(A Member of The BCDA GrouP)

Statement of Changes in EquitY
For the year ended December 3I,2017

(With comparative figures as of December 31, 2016)

Share Capital
Balance at Beginning of the Period

Authorized, issued and fullY Paid

800,000 shares, P100.00 Par value

Balance at End of thePeriod

Other Equity Investments
Balance at Beginning of the Period

Additions

Deductions

Balance at End of the Period

Retained Earnings
Balance at Beginning of the Period

Correction of prior Year's errors

As restated

Net Income (Loss)

Balance at End of the Period

TOTAL EQIIITY

15$00,000.00

(41t,1t7.57)
29 (+,520,202.00)

(4,931,319.57)

11,534,q87.09

6,603$67.52

20r6

P 68,143,720.23 P

2015

69,143,'120.23

68,143J2O23

1X000,000.00

68,t43J2023

15,000,000.00

15,000,000.00

(9,447,772.20)
(1-040.180.99)

--L--L--
(10,487,953.19)

10,076,835.62

(411,117.57)

89,747,087.75 P 82,732,602.66



PORO POINT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION
(A Member of The BCDA Group)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year'ended December 31,2017

(With comparative figures as of December 31, 2016)

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Cash Inflow

OPEX funds received from BCDA P

Coll. of Zone revenues in behalf of BCDA
Collection ol Receivables
Coll. of Permits at CCA in behalf of BCDA
Collection of Miscellaneous Income

Total Cash Inflow
Cash Outflow

Payment to Employees and Suppliers
Remittance of Collections to BCDA
Payment of Taxes

Reclass. of Time Deposit more than 90 days

Total Cash Outflow
Net Cash Provided by (used in)
Operating Activities

Cash Flor,v from Investing Activities
Ca.slr Inflou,

Interest received
Cash Outflow

Capital Expenditure projects

Acquisition of Land
Total Cash Outflow

Net Cash Provided by (used in)
Investing Activities

Cash Fiow from Financing Activities
Cash lnflow

Capex from BCDA
Net Cash Provided by (used in)
Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

ldl: C:sr :nJ Crsn EqLrivaients. Beginning

Cesh and Cash Equivalents. Ending

5,263,200.64

5.263.200.6J

1l .76e.805.861

13.953.963.75

p - t:.tsrr<;-99 p

2017

62,789,975.00
65,398,791.60

7,534,260.80
1,252,374.11

91.7,539.11

137,892,?40.62

(66,400,014.37)
(65,082,342.21)
(8,781,t63.97)

(140,263,520.55)

8,370,579.93)

20r6

P 60,695,030.00
63,036,530.17
17,342,132.78

1,306,820.00
583,400.00

142,963,912.95

(60,688,124.80)
(64,659,904.88)

(6,840,406.63)
(50,701,626.46)

(t82,890,062.37)

(39,926,149.42)

803,994.31

(5,466,420.88)

829,493.81

(20,879,047.10)

(5,466,420.88)

(4,662,426.57)

(20,879,0+7.10)

(20,049,553.29)

24,918,827.48

20,918,827.08

(39,056,875.63)

53,010,839.38

-is3ffi
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PORO POINT MANAGEMENT CORPORATION 

(A Member of The BCDA Group) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2017 

 

 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

 The Bases Conversion and Development Authority (BCDA) was created under 

Republic Act (RA) No. 7227 dated March 13, 1993. The main objective is to accelerate 

the sound and balanced conversion of former military reservations, especially the 

American Military Bases into alternative productive civilian uses for the benefit of the 

Filipino people. 

 

 Pursuant to this Act, Presidential Proclamation No. 216 was issued creating and 

designating the area covered by the former Wallace Air Station, the San Fernando Seaport 

and Airport, and contiguous areas in Poro Point as Poro Point Special Economic and 

Freeport Zone (PPSEFZ), now the Poro Point Freeport Zone (PPFZ).  

 

 On June 29, 1993, Executive Order (EO) No. 103 was issued, establishing the John 

Hay Development Corporation (JHDC) as a subsidiary and implementing arm of BCDA 

for Club John Hay.  

 

 Subsequently, on October 07, 1998, EO No. 31 was issued amending Sections 1 and 3 

of EO No. 103, series of 1993, renaming John Hay Development Corporation (JHDC) to 

John Hay Poro Point Development Corporation (JPDC) as the authorized operating and 

implementing arm of the BCDA to manage the John Hay Special Economic Zone 

(JHSEZ) and the PPFZ and its contiguous areas.  

 

 On October 03, 2002, EO No. 132 was issued authorizing the creation of Poro Point 

Management Corporation (PPMC) as the implementing arm of BCDA over the PPFZ and 

renaming the John Hay Poro Point Development Corporation (JPDC) as the John Hay 

Management Corporation (JHMC).  

 

 PPMC was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on 

January 06, 2003.  

 

 On March 20, 2007, Republic Act (RA) No. 9400 was enacted affirming the Freeport 

status of the PPSEFZ, renaming it as the Poro Point Freeport Zone (PPFZ). 

 

Performance Agreement  

 

 Pursuant to EO No. 62 issued on February 27, 1993 on the prescribed policies and 

guidelines for the implementation of RA No. 7227, BCDA is mandated to perform 

oversight over subsidiaries and adopt and implement an oversight mechanism to 

implement efficient utilization of scarce resources and to ensure that the plans and 

programs of subsidiaries are proceeding according to national goals and objectives. 
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 In order to carry out this objective, EO No. 62 likewise mandates that BCDA and its 

subsidiaries enter into a Performance Agreement embodying the performance criteria and 

target for the year and the desired goals of the succeeding years.  

 

 Towards this goal, BCDA and PPMC entered into a Performance Agreement, setting 

the performance standards in accordance with the policies and programs of BCDA and 

PPMC which is mutually acceptable to both parties.  

 

 Foremost among the features of the Agreement is about the financial undertakings 

that BCDA and PPMC have to comply with, briefly summarized as follows:  

 

 BCDA as property owner of the PPFZ shall earn from lease rentals, joint venture 

agreements, and other business arrangements generated in the PPFZ and from 

dividends to be declared by PPMC. PPMC shall record these revenues as Trust 

Liability and remit the same to BCDA through a designated bank account. The same 

shall now be recorded as income of BCDA.  

 

 PPMC as estate manager shall earn estate management fees due from BCDA either a 

50 percent share in the revenues of the PPFZ or fixed amount of PhP60.5 million 

annually for the next two (2) years beginning 2014 to cover Personal Services (PS) 

and Maintenance & Other Operating Expenses (MOOE), whichever is higher. In 

addition, PPMC shall receive a 10 percent share on the net income of the zone.  

 

 PPMC shall ensure that all necessary and appropriate insurance coverage for 

properties within the zone as well as security services for the property are secured. 

Insurance coverage, maintenance and depreciation expenses of BCDA properties 

within the zone, as well as maintenance and security services for the property, 

however, shall be charged to BCDA as owner of the land. 

 

 PPMC shall formulate an annual work plan and budget to be submitted to BCDA for 

approval in accordance with Financial Policy No. 502-2.  

 

 PPMC shall submit a rolling five-year OPEX schedule for BCDA funding and 

approval while maintaining the expected Return on Assets (ROA) and Return on 

Equity (ROE) targets for BCDA. A yearly submission of the actual OPEX for review 

and next year’s projected OPEX schedule for consideration and approval of BCDA 

shall be presented during the planning and budgeting deliberations. 

 

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

The significant accounting policies are set forth to facilitate understanding of data 

presented in the financial statements. 

 

Basis of preparation 

 

 The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the Philippines. These are the Company’s first 

financial statements prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting 

Standards (PFRS), where PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting 

Standards, was then applied. 
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 The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of 

Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and 

Notes to Financial Statements. 

 

Use of Estimates and Judgements 

 

 The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires 

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 

policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The 

estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other 

factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. It also requires 

management to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies 

consistent with that of the BCDA. 

 

 PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, requires 

an entity adopting PFRS for the first time (a first-time adopter) to comply with each 

PFRS that has come into effect at the reporting date for its first PFRS financial 

statements. It also requires a first-time adopter to prepare an opening PFRS balance sheet 

at the date of transition to PFRS, the beginning of the earliest adoption to which it 

represents the full comparative information under PFRS.  

 

 PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, (a) provides a framework within 

which an entity assesses how to present fairly the effects of transactions and other events; 

(b) provides the base criteria for classifying liabilities as current or non-current; (c) 

prohibits the presentation of items of income and expenses as extraordinary items in the 

financial statements; and (d) specifies the disclosures 

 

 IAS 2 – Inventories. This standard prescribes the accounting treatment for 

inventories. It provides guidance on the determination of cost and its subsequent 

recognition as an expense, including any write-down to net realizable value. It also 

provides guidance on the cost formulas that are used to assign costs to inventories. 

 

 IAS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment. This standard prescribes the accounting 

treatment for property, plant and equipment so that users of the financial statements can 

discern information about an entity’s investment in its property, plant and equipment and 

the changes in such investment. An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies 

for recognition as an asset shall be measured at cost. An entity shall choose either the cost 

model or the revaluation model as its accounting policy and shall apply that policy to an 

entire class of property, plant and equipment. The depreciable amount of an asset shall be 

allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. The residual value and the useful life 

of an asset shall be reviewed at least each financial year-end and, if expectations differ 

from previous estimates, the changes(s) shall be accounted for as change in an accounting 

estimate in accordance with IAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors.     

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
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 Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly 

liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less from date of 

acquisition. 

  

Supplies and Materials 

 

 This account carries the value of unused supplies and materials in stock using the 

moving average inventory method. 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

 Property and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  

Depreciation is measured using the straight-line method with composite rates ranging 

from 5% to 20%. In accordance with COA Circular No. 2004-3 dated October 4, 2004 

and COA Circular No. 2015-002 dated March 9, 2015 the computation of depreciation 

expense shall start on the following month after the purchase/completion of the PPE, 

irrespective of date within the month.  The current and subsequent month depreciation 

expense shall be computed as follows: 

 

Monthly Depreciation Expense =    Carrying Amount – Residual Value 

Remaining Useful Life 

The effect of the recognition of depreciation as a result of the change in the estimated 

residual value from 10% to 5% of the cost shall be applied prospectively. 

 

Assets acquired with value of not more than PhP15,000.00 are recorded under 

supplies and materials expense upon issue to the end-user pursuant to COA Circular No. 

2015-007 dated October 22, 2015. However, items with individual values below the 

threshold of PhP15,000.00 but which work together in the form of a group of network 

asset whose total value exceeds the threshold shall be recognized as part of the primary 

PPE, e.g. computer network. 

 

Maintenance and repairs of PPE are charged to operations.  Improvements and/ or 

major repairs that considerably extend assets life or if the repair costs are material in 

amount are charged to the appropriate asset account. 

 

Revenue Recognition 

 

Fund released for operating expenditures (OPEX) from BCDA are reflected as 

Management fees in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

 

Collections received in trust 

 

PPMC shall remit to BCDA on a regular basis all revenues from contracts and other 

sources of revenues generated within the PPFZ and shall be recorded as “Cash or 

Accounts Receivable-Trade Accruing to BCDA” and credited to account “Due To 

BCDA”.  Collections are deposited daily to BCDA Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) 

Account No. 0202-0177-54 at City of San Fernando, La Union. Results of these activities 

are being reported to BCDA on a monthly basis.  
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2. CASH ON HAND 

 

The cash-collecting officer account consists of cash and check collections received on 

December 29, 2017 representing zone revenues such as regulatory fees and lease rentals. 

PPMC entered into a deposit pick-up arrangement with the Land Bank of the Philippines 

(LBP) on November 7, 2014, wherein LBP collects daily at the PPMC Office from Monday 

through Friday, from 8:30 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. The un-deposited cash collections were received 

after the cut-off time. 

 

3. CASH IN BANK-LOCAL CURRENCY 

 

This account consists of the following: 

 

  2017 2016 

Cash in Bank-Local Currency, LBP Opex Current 220,012.45               168,280.22  

Cash in Bank-Local Currency, DBP Opex Current 2,107,768.17            5,034,888.04  

Cash in Bank-Local Currency, DBP Capex Current  1,108,055.23            1,581,533.90  

Cash in Bank-Local Currency, DBP Opex Savings  25,116.16                 71,754.32  

Total Cash In Bank-Local Currency 3,460,952.01            6,856,456.48  

 

Cash in Bank-Local Currency, LBP Opex Current Account 

 

PPMC maintains a current account for its Operating Expenses (Opex) at the Land 

Bank of the Philippines (LBP). This was the original account of PPMC prior to its transfer to 

the Philippine National Bank (PNB) on 02 July 2004.  

 

Cash in Bank-Local Currency, DBP Opex Current Account 

 

On 23 June 2014, PPMC opened a current account for its Operating Expenses (Opex) 

at the Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) pursuant to the advice of the Department 

of Finance (DOF) to wind down PPMC’s deposits at PNB and transfer the same to either 

LBP/DBP.  

 

Cash in Bank-Local Currency, DBP Capex Account 

 

On 22 October 2014, PPMC opened a current account for its Capital Expenditures 

(Capex) at the Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) pursuant to the advice of the 

Department of Finance (DOF) to wind down PPMC’s deposits at PNB and transfer the same 

to either LBP/DBP. 

 

Cash in Bank, Local Currency, DBP Opex Savings Account 

 

On 30 June 2016, PPMC opened a savings account for its Electronic Government (e-Gov) 

services account at DBP as approved by the PPMC Board per Resolution No. 2016-05-372 

on 20 May 2016. The facility allows PPMC to pay premiums and loans on-line to the SSS, 

Pag-ibig Fund and Philhealth. 

 

4. CASH EQUIVALENTS 
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This account represents authorized placements of time deposit at the Land Bank of the 

Philippines (LBP) with a maturity of 90 days.  

 

5. INVESTMENTS IN TIME DEPOSITS 

 

This account represents authorized placements of time deposit at the Land Bank of the 

Philippines (LBP) and Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) with maturities of 120 

days. 

 

6. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES 

 

The accounts receivable pertains to remittances of suppliers’ taxes to BIR that will be 

collected from the concerned suppliers. The rest of the accounts are various receivables from 

former Officers of PPMC.  

 

7. INTRA-AGENCY RECEIVABLES 
 

The due from BCDA account pertains to reimbursement of expenses for BCDA land 

related costs such as insurance coverage, maintenance and security services for the property. 
 

8. OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 

The Due from Officers and Employees account are receivables from PPMC personnel for 

personal calls, prior year taxes due and other miscellaneous charges. 

 

9. INVENTORIES 

 

The office supplies inventory, accountable forms, food supplies, chemical and filtering 

supplies inventory, construction materials and electrical supplies inventory are based on 

moving average method. 

 

10. PREPAYMENTS 
 

This account includes: 

 

  2017 2016 

Advances to Contractors 1,172,604.34               2,225,244.46  

Prepaid Registration 40,769.57            30,799.95  

Prepaid Insurance  434,937.43            461,052.81  

Total Prepayments  1,648,311.34            2,717,097.22  

 

The Advances to Contractors account pertains to the advance payment (15% 

mobilization fees) made to the contractor of the Baywalk with events center project and 

miscellaneous advances made to other suppliers. 

 

Prepaid registration refers to various prepayments made for the renewal of vehicles, 

firearm and radio licenses with a minimum coverage period of one (1) year. 
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Prepaid insurance represents unexpired portion of insurance premiums of PPMC occupied 

building, building contents, directors and officers liability insurance and vehicle insurance.     

 

11. GUARANTY DEPOSITS 

 

Guaranty deposits pertain on payments to service providers such as telephone and electric 

companies that are refundable upon cancellation/termination of contracts. 

 

12. INVESTMENTS 

 

This account includes: 

 

  2017 2016 

Investments in Joint Venture               15,000,000.00                15,000,000.00  

Other Investments-Investment in Stocks            15,000.00             15,000.00  

 Total Investments            15,015,000.00  15,015,000.00           

 

The investment in joint venture pertains to the 15% investment share of PPMC to 

Poro Point Industrial Corporation (PPIC) pursuant to the Pre-Incorporation Agreement dated 

September 21, 1999. 

 

The investment in stocks represents subscription of shares of stock to PLDT. 

 

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
 

This account consists of: 

  2017 2016 

Investment Property-Land               21,441,469.65                21,441,469.65  

Investment Property-Building            6,676,047.56             6,676,047.56  

Construction in Progress 49,909,596.64 42,891,995.79 

 Total Investment Property            78,027,113.85             71,009,513.00  

  

 Investment property-land refers to the validated land held-in trust within the Poro 

Point Freeport Zone in behalf of BCDA. Acquisition cost was valued at P1,250.00/P2,300.00 

per square meter plus documentary stamp taxes & other similar incidental charges.  

 

 There are forty-seven (47) original land titles already forwarded to BCDA out of the 

seventy-three (73) land titles covering 5.43 hectares, more or less. Titles of the remaining lots 

are still subject to reconstitution as a result of the fire that gutted the Register of Deeds 

building on August 26, 2000. 

 

 On August 2, 2012, the Land Registration Administration (LRA) informed 

BCDA/PPMC that the following titles were issued with reconstitution orders: T-52521; T-

52526; T-52530; T-52518; T-46198; T-52588. The LRA likewise informed BCDA that the 

rest of the TCT’s with pending applications for reconstitution may have been damaged during 

the fire that destroyed the LRA office on July 22, 2011. PPMC will file the necessary 

documents in order to safeguard PPMC’s rights to the properties. 
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 Investment property-buildings represents finished capital expenditure projects such as 

provision of lighting at the industrial area and the relocation and replication of the Philippine 

Air Force (PAF) fence and guardhouse amounting to Php2,959,962.96 and Php3,716,084.60 

respectively. These projects were already liquidated to BCDA on 11 February 2016 and 14 

September 2016. However, BCDA will issue accounting instructions to PPMC to effect the 

liquidation in the books once the Certificate of Acceptance has been released by PPMC to the 

Contractors. 

 

 Construction in progress held in trust of P49,909,596.64 constitutes capital 

expenditure projects for the construction of baywalk with events center which is being funded 

by BCDA. Upon completion, this project together with relevant documents will be turned-

over to BCDA and the corresponding advances granted to PPMC are liquidated.  

 

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE) 

 

The details of this group of accounts consist of the following: 

 

  2017 2016 

Land Improvements 276,082.12               276,082.12  

Infrastructure Assets 

Buildings & Other Structures 
516,605.02 

8,978,610.71 

516,605.02 

8,978,610.71 

Machinery and Equipment 9,945,478.76 10,021,447.76 

Furniture, Fixtures and Books 2,256,063.49 2,188,063.49 

Transportation Equipment 14,500,611.91 14,500,611.91 

Total 36,473,452.01 36,481,421.01 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 30,371,663.00 27,772,129.17 

Total 6,101,789.01 8,709,291.84 

    

Property, plant and equipment pertain to assets acquired and are utilized and directly 

benefits PPMC which includes among others, properties such as buildings, furniture, fixtures, 

machineries, equipment and motor vehicles. 

 

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 

This account consists of computer software used by PPMC in its operations.  

 

16. OTHER ASSETS 

 

This account consists of accounts receivable held in trust by PPMC for BCDA amounting 

to P2,267,340.39. The accounts receivable-current of P1,257,615.89 refer to collectibles from 

locators representing revenues generated within the Poro Point Freeport Zone held in trust by 

PPMC for BCDA while non-current trade receivables held in trust of P1,009,724.50 is long 

outstanding airport fees due from Ace Pilots Aviation Academy subject of a legal move to 

pursue collection in Court.   

 

17. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

 

This account represents the outstanding payables on purchases made from local suppliers 

and contractors.  
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18. INTRA-AGENCY PAYABLES 

 

Due to other funds refers to the provident fund premium contributions and loans payable. 

Provident premiums of PPMC employees corresponds to 2.5% of their monthly salary and 

PPMC counterpart of 5% as provided under PPMC Policy No.011-2003. This will pool funds 

to serve as a financial facility to be utilized at some time in the future at more favorable terms 

and conditions. Provident loans payable refers to loans of PPMC employees to the Provident 

fund. The Board of Trustees approved the implementing guidelines for the Employees 

Provident Fund Loan Program on October 20, 2005.  

 

Due to BCDA pertains to the earned revenues within the PPFZ held in trust by PPMC for 

BCDA. Collections there from are to be remitted to BCDA through the designated bank 

account. Part of this account is the long outstanding airport fees due from ACE Pilots 

Aviation Academy in the amount of P1,009,724.50 subject of a legal move to pursue 

collection in court; and the accounts receivable current of P1,257,615.89. This account also 

includes funds released by BCDA for capital expenditure projects such as construction of bay 

walk with events center per accounting instructions issued by BCDA. Upon completion of 

these construction projects, PPMC will liquidate the advances made by turning over the 

completed projects to BCDA. 

 

19. TRUST LIABILITIES 

 

This account consists of trust liabilities and performance security payables. Trust 

liabilities refer to bid fees collected from bidders. Performance security payable is posted by 

a bidder to guarantee the faithful performance of its obligations of an awarded contract, 

which may be forfeited or refunded in accordance with RA 9184.  

 

20. OTHER PAYABLES 

 

This account consists of bid bond payables, retention payables and miscellaneous 

payables. Bid bond or bid security is posted by a bidder as a guarantee that the latter will 

enter into contract with the procuring entity. Retention payable represents the amount due to 

the contractor which shall be due for release upon final acceptance of its works to PPMC.  

 

21. DUE TO BCDA 

 

This account refers to the cash advances from BCDA for the acquisition of private lots 

within the Wallace Area.  

 

22. CAPITAL STOCK 

 

The company was authorized to issue 800,000 shares at P100 cost per share. BCDA has 

approved for an increase of authorized capital stock from PhP80 million to PhP300 million 

per letter dated May 4, 2012.  

 

On October 15, 2014, PPMC wrote a letter to the Governance Commission for 

Government Owned and Controlled Corporation (GCG), requesting for the latter’s 

endorsement/clearance/recommendation for the amendment of the Articles of Incorporation 

of PPMC prior to submission to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for 



23 

 

approval. On October 27, 2014, GCG directed PPMC to submit documents to be used in the 

evaluation process of the latter’s request. On November 2, 2016, PPMC submitted additional 

documents required by GCG in the evaluation process. Finally, on November 23, 2016, the 

GCG approved the request for increase in capitalization of PPMC. PPMC is now currently 

processing the application of increase in authorized capital stock with the SEC. 

 

23. EQUITY IN JOINT VENTURE 

 

The Pre-Incorporation Agreement entered into on September 24, 1999 by and between 

the Bases Conversion and Development Authority (BCDA) and John Hay Poro Point 

Development Corporation (JPDC) now, Poro Point Management Corporation (PPMC) and 

Bulk Handlers, Inc. (BHI), a corporation duly organized under Philippine laws, created a 

joint venture corporation under the name of Poro Point Industrial Corporation (PPIC).   

 

Section 1, paragraph 1.02 of the Pre-Incorporation Agreement provides that the PPIC 

shall be organized for the principal purpose of undertaking the utilization, development, 

operation, management, and administration of the seaport and industrial areas as well as all 

reclamation works within the project area. 

 

Section 1, paragraph 1.03 also provides that the authorized capital stock of PPIC shall 

initially be in the amount of P100,000,000. BCDA/PPMC shall subscribe to shares equal to 

P30,000,000 constituting thirty percent (30%) ownership of the total outstanding capital 

stock. On the other hand, BHI and/or its consortium shall subscribe to and fully pay for 

shares equal to P70,000,000.00 for a seventy percent (70%) ownership of the total 

outstanding capital stock of PPIC. 

 

It was likewise provided under the terms of the Agreement that BHI shall fund the thirty 

percent (30%) equity participation of BCDA/PPMC in exchange for the leasehold rights over 

the project area and that BHI shall always fund the equity participation of BCDA/PPMC in 

the event the capital stock of PPIC is increased to avoid dilution of the BCDA/PPMC shares. 

 

To date, PPMC’s equity share amounts to P15,000,000.00 equivalent to fifteen percent 

(15%) of the total authorized capital stock of PPIC. 

 

24. MANAGEMENT FEES 

 

This account consists mainly of management fees. PPMC as estate manager of the PPFZ 

is compensated by BCDA in the form of OPEX fund releases corresponding to the budget for 

Personal Services (PS) and Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses (MOOE) of PPMC 

for the year. Such fund releases are recognized as estate management fees in the books of 

PPMC and are being released by BCDA at the start of the year. 

 

BCDA, as property owner is entitled to the revenues generated from the PPFZ which 

comprise of lease rentals, airport fees, gaming revenue share, share in the sale of real estate 

projects and regulatory fees.  

 

For the year 2017, BCDA earned a total revenue of Php101,254,626.17, net of 

P48,929,375.00 uncollectible PPIC account subject to litigation. 
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The entry of Thunderbird Pilipinas Hotels and Resorts, Inc, whose Casino opened for 

business on April 28, 2006, provided a significant share in the revenues generated. Total 

percentage share in net winnings of 3% amounted to Php31,964,694.09 for the year 2017. 

This amount represents variable income for BCDA/PPMC on top of the monthly fixed lease 

rentals of PhP1,797,646.25. 

 

Likewise, BCDA’s 7.5% share on sales of real estate projects amounted to 

Php11,671,387.31. All collections accruing BCDA are deposited to BCDA’s bank account. 

 

25. MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 

 

This account consists of fees collected during the Sillag Festival of Lights such as sale of 

hope lanterns and singlet for the fun run activities, motor show fees, trade/food fair booth 

rental during the event.  

 

26. INSURANCE EXPENSES 

 

This account consists of insurance coverage at the Government Service Insurance System 

(GSIS) of motor vehicles, building and contents and Directors’, Officers’ Liability Insurance 

(DOLI) coverage of the Board of Directors and key officers of PPMC. Registration expense 

pertains to the registration of motor vehicles at the Land Transportation Office (LTO).  

 

27. ADVERTISING, PROMOTIONAL AND MARKETING EXPENSES 

 

This account consists of advertisement to various media infrastructures, sponsorship to 

marketing events, procurement of marketing collaterals, membership in the Philippine 

Investment Promotion Plan (PIPP), participation in local expositions and various marketing 

events conducted inside the Poro Point Freeport Zone such as the Sillag Festival of Lights 

and promotion of the Baywalk Events Center.   

 

28. OTHER MAINTENANCE AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 

 

This account consists of: 

 

  2017 2016 

Special Projects              5,477,466.98               5,900,081.72  

Other Board Expense-Meals            543,565.82             652,072.50  

MV Registration 30,469.49             40,101.32             

 Total Other MOOE 6,051,502.29             6,592,255.54             

 

One of the items under special projects is the Sillag Festival or Poro Point Festival of 

Lights which is an annual festival launched by PPMC on April 28, 2012. The festival focuses 

on the Poro Point Lighthouse which is being promoted by PPMC as an integral component of 

the tourism development inside the PPFZ. The festival aims to attract domestic and foreign 

tourists to create a mass market to encourage business and tourism inside the PPFZ as well as 

the City of San Fernando and the rest of the Province of La Union. 

 

Special projects also included community development or inclusive growth which is 

paramount to PPMC. Alongside the development efforts and creation of business 



25 

 

opportunities in the PPFZ, PPMC pursued community development projects to improve the 

quality of life of the impact communities. PPMC HELPS was institutionalized as PPMC’s 

vehicle to implement Corporate Social Responsibility Program. HELPS stands for the various 

components of the program – health, education/environment, livelihood program and 

strengthening linkages. 

 

Also part of the special projects is the trade mission to provide opportunity to showcase 

and promote the PPFZ as an investment destination in the Philippines. Trade missions also 

provide an avenue for PPMC to explore business opportunities as well as get insights on the 

developments and trends in the markets of Asia and other countries. 

 

29. RETAINED EARNINGS 

  

Correction of Prior Year’s Errors charged to Retained Earnings for the CY 2017 are shown 

below: 

 

Date Reference Particulars Amount 

1/31/17 JV 2017-01-008 to 

001, CDB 

Prior year’s expenses (138,278.80) 

2/28/17 JV 2017-02-013 Step increment of employees for CY 2015 

to CY 2016 

(1,162,609.00) 

2//28/17 JV 2017-02-016 Prior year’s expenses 4,250.00 

2//28/17 JV 2017-02-019 Prior year’s expenses (80,503.00) 

2//28/17 JV 2017-02-020 Adjustment of depreciation expense of 

motor vehicles, from 10 years to 7 years 

per COA Circular No. 2004-03. 

(1,362,501.39) 

2//28/17 JV 2017-02-021 Prior year’s expenses 85,437.73 

2/28/17 CDB Performance-based incentive of PPMC 

Directors for CY 2015 

(1,421,202.50) 

2//28/17 CDB Prior year’s expenses (16,132.63) 

3/31/17 JV 2017-03-030 Prior year’s expenses (25,000.00) 

3/31/17 CDB Prior year’s expenses (8,687.79) 

4/30/17 CDB Prior year’s expenses (16,710.06) 

5/31/17 CDB Prior year’s expenses (379,520.47) 

5/31/17 JV 2017-05-043 Prior year’s expenses (33,827.00) 

6/30/17 JV 2017-06-057 Electricity charges of Werr Intl. on Sept-

Dec 2016 

14,076.04 

7/31/17 JV 2017-07-072 Sillag fees 2016  4,000.00 

10/31/17 JV 2017-10-102 Prior year’s expenses (28,500.00) 

12/31/17 JV 2017-12-122 Adjustment of prior year’s expenses 45,506.87 

  TOTAL (4,520,202.00) 
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30. STATUS OF PENDING LITIGATIONS 

 

 

CASE STATUS/UPDATE 

 

1. PPMC vs. Spouses Reynaldo Q. Dyquiangco and 

Yolanda V. Dyquiangco   

Civil Case No. 5012 Recovery of Possession of  

Personal Property with Application for Issuance 

of Writ of Replevin 

 

2. PPMC vs. Ace Pilots Aviation Academy, Inc. 

Civil Case No. 9007  

Collection of Sum of Money 

PhP1,031,258.80 

 

 

3. BCDA/PPMC  

vs. Lepanto Consolidated Mining Co. and 

Shipside Incorporated  

Re: Expropriation Cases (for eminent domain) 

 

 

 

4. Bulk Handler’s Inc. (BHI), Moran, Tan, 

Venturina and Poro Point Industrial Corporation 

(PPIC)  

vs. BCDA and PPMC 

Re: Petition for Injunction brought under the 

Interim Rules of Procedure Governing Intra-

Corporate Controversies (to prevent 

implementation of PPMC Resolution No. 2006-

01-10 declaring the Pre-Incorporation Agreement 

null and void ab initio.) 

 

-The court ruled in favor of PPMC in its decision 

dated November 8, 2016. The defendant filed a motion 

for reconsideration. The Sheriff could not enforce the 

writ of execution because the subject vehicle cannot be 

located. 

 

-The Honorable Court rendered a decision on June 30, 

2017 in favor of PPMC. Subsequently, upon motion, a 

writ of execution was issued. Service of writ of 

execution against the defendant is scheduled by the 

Sheriff. 

 

-Defendants filed petition for Certiorari from the 

decision of the Court of Appeals to remand the case to 

the trial court. The case is pending in the Supreme 

Court. PPMC is waiting for an update from the Office 

of the Solicitor General (OSG) and Office of the 

Government Corporate Counsel (OGCC). 

 

-BCDA opted to wait for the final decision of the 

higher court and did not approve the proposal to enter 

into a compromise agreement with BHI. The case is 

pending in the Supreme Court where BCDA elevated 

the adverse decision of the Court of Appeals.   PPMC 

is waiting for an update from the Office of the 

Solicitor General (OSG) and Office of the 

Government Corporate Counsel (OGCC).  
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PART II _ AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

A. FINANCIAL AND COMPLIANCB

Irregular Procurement and Misuse of Cash Advance - PL04,793-93

1. Cash advances were resorted to in the procurement and payment of supplies and

meals during the conduct cf Corporate Planning in Vigan City, Ilocos Sur. The

use of the Cash Advance for the purchase of the regular supplies is contrary to
COA Circular No. 97-002 dhted February l0o 1997 and Section 4.114 Revenue

Regulation No. 2-98 dated April 17, 1998, as this tantamounts to evasion of the

proper imposition of taxes to the sellers/suppliers and audit.

Post-audit of accounts disclosed that the Corporate Planning Officer was

granted a cash advance amounting to P124,000.00 purposely for the conduct of
Corporate Planning in Vigan City, Ilocos Sur. Review of the liquidation report

disclosed that out of the amount granted, regular expenditures amounting to
P104,793.93 were paid for office and other supplies amounting toP8,574.72 and

meals andbeverages amountingtoP96,219.21 . Also these expenditures were paid

directly, instead of procuring through alternative method of procurement. Details are

shown below:

Item
No.

Date
Receipt /
Invoice

Supplier Amount Particulars

1 6116120t7 93639
Puregold Price
Club Inc.

P 673 s0
Office and

Other Supplies

1 6119DA17 498 1 13 National Bookstore 662.00
Office and

Other Supplies

-') 611912017 498115 National Bookstore 708.7 5
OtIce and

Other Supplies

4 6lt9l20t7 498114 National Bookstore 981.75
OtTlce ancl

Other SLrpplies

5 6124120t7

624201702
45000 i 000

000
National Bool<stote 591 25

Offrce ancl

Other Sr-Lpulies

6 61242-0t-7

624201702
450003000

000

Natior-ral Bookstoi.- 453.75
Office and

Other Supplies

7 6t2120t7 3 9b2
Metrovision Cust.
Printing & Gen.
Mdse.

Office and

Other Supprlies

a) 6t21i2-At]
62_4201742
.1.+5000000 \ atror',.'., B,' - :.S, - l,'



Item
No.

Date
Receipt /
Invoice

Supplier Amount Partictrlars

000

9 6/2s12017 98060
Arly Trading&
Construction
Suoolv

165.00
Offrce and

Other Supplies

Sub-T otal P8,574.72

10 6124120t7 24886
Jollibee Foods
Corporation

891.00
Meals and
Beverages

11 612612011 7218563 Savemore Market 3,009.08
Meals and
Beverages

)2 612612017 29390
Marsha's
Delicacies

60.00
Meals and
Beverages

1-) 6126120t7 29391
Marsha's
Delicacies

445 00
Meals and
Berrerases

14 612612017 r29286t
Puregold Price
Club Inc.

530.05
Meals and
Beverages

t5 612612017 19331
Puregold Price
Club Inc.

1r,849.40
Meals and
Beveraqes

16 612612017 13 55
Ammianance
Bibineka Royal

180 00
Meals and
Berrerages

l/ 6126120r7 10005
Rowlida's
Loomweaving 1

6r0 00
Meals and
Beveraqes

18 612612011 r8226 Uno Grille 1"248 40
N,{ea1s and
Beverages

19 612612017 \4r77 Lampong's
Restaurant

385.00
Meals and
Beverages

20 612712017 J.]-J
8.88 Restaurant and
Sport Bar

23,518.00
Meals and
Beverages

2l 612812017 575 Lance Manuela Inn 2,160.00
Meals and
Beverages

22 612812017 826
Diay Plaza
Foodnrarl and

Catering Services
1,500.00

Meals and
Beveraqes

l-l 612812017 11241 First Sinan-elar,v 780 00 -\,1ea1s ancl

Beveraces

al:- 6282017 827
Diay Plaza
Foodrr-rart and

Caterinq Sen'ices
3,000.00

fuIeals and
Beveraqes

t5 6/2812017 993 7
Iavrer Trading
Corporation

\-:-.-> -:---.

i. lS lt, 1- 19351
Puregold Price
Club.Inc.

,-.lSl,-l ) _,) Diar Plaza

ln



Item
No.

Date
Receipt /
Invoice

Supplier Amount Particrrlars

Fooclmart and

Caterins Services
Beverages

28 6l28l20t7 -)-l-lJJ
8 88 Restaurant and

Sport Bar
8,6-s6.00

N4eals and
Beverages

29 6l2s/2011 17778
Victory l-echon
Manok

3,500.00
Meals and
Beverages

30 6l2el20t7 829
Dtay Plaza
Foodmart and
Catering Services

1,000.00
Meals ancl

13everages

31 6129/2017 579 Lance Manuela Inn 960.00
Meals and
Beveraqes

-l_ 612912017 24645 Hotel Luna 11,355 98
Meals and
Beverages

,'', -l 612912017 4349
I(usina De
Kenvong

6372.A0
Meals and
Beverages

34, 6/29/2017 7725
Susarr F. Jorzen

Eaterv
3 3 5.00

Meals and
Beverages

Sub-T otal P96,2t9.21
Total P104"793.93

Section 48.1 of 2016 Revised IRR of R.A 9184 states that "Subjet:l {ts tlrc

Ttrior upltrot,al of lhe Hol'E, cuttl tvhenever.lrr,stilied hy the cont{itictn,s 1l'ot,itlct{ in thi.s

Act, rhe Procut'iug linti4t hluy, in orcler lo ltrotuote econottty c*rc{ e./ficienc"),,, ,'rt'r,,', ,r,

cut.1,tr/.t\rc olternulive rnelhr,tcl.c ty''proun'ernenl prot,ic{ecl in lhi.s lhie. ln ull instcrrce.s,

ilrc Proutring Entit_lt,;ltall en,lrrrc thui the mo,gt (ttlt,utttugeous pt'ic:e.for the
(] ove r n m eti i.s o btiline tl. "

Also, Section 52.1.b of the same 1aw states that "Procuremertl of rtrdirrut't,ot'
regulur office nryplie,s crntl etpripnrcill ilot ttvcri/uble in lhe l't'octrranrertt Set't'tc't'
itn'olvirrg oil ttnotltl nr.tl exceec{ing llte thre,sholcl.s 1:rescrihec{ itt Atutex "H" ri thi.s

IIIR ntcty ltc re.sortet{ lht'ough Sl'toppirtg"

Further, Section 53.9 of the same law states the following: ",

Procurement. Procurement of Goods, Infrastructure Projects and
Senices, where the amowtt inttolved does not exceed the threshold p
Annex "H" of this IRR: Provided, That in case of Gods, the proctrem
fall uder shopping in Sectiorr 52 of this IRR"

It rry-as further noted that the aforementioned urrchases were not s
e necessary documents. xhich could be doub
rch so not to lacilitate audit uails. As it is. the

,r L,l

9ntrsll L'alue

Conszltittg
rescribetl iri
orfi ,lrot 71ati



bold papers, ciips, tarpauline and other semitrar materials. Moreover, tneals included

fastfoods, delicacies, vinegars, catering services, assofied beverages and hotel meais

rvhich coulcl raise doubts as to their regularity/legality because ol the absence ol
supporting documents. There is no way/trails to determine if the most advautageous

price was availed of by the Management which pertains to Alternative lVlethod of
irrocurement under RA 9184 was not strictly foltowed. The liber-ty was all given to the

officer-in-charge to disburse the cash advances drawn withor"rt due regard to existing

rules and regulations.

A11 purchases were paid directly to various suppliers on various dates rvith

official receipts and invoices only as attachments for the procurement. Tl-re necessarY

suppofiillg clocnments such as Purchase Orders, Purchase R-equest, Request for

Quiotatiols, BAC Resolutions, print out of posting to PhiIGEPS and other conspict-tous

places were not submitted.

Sectior, 50 of Revised IRR of R.A 9184 provides the following:

"Direct contraclirtg mult be rescsrlec{ to lty ceTlssrned Procuring Etttitie.s

u n tl e r cu q; of t h e .fo I I otrt i t t g c on tl i l i o t t,s :

ct) Procurement of Gootls of proprietarS,, trctttre v,ltich cttn be oblcrined

ottl.v .from lhe proprielat)t ,ssl17's', i'e' v'hen patents, lt'ode secrets, ttttcl

copyt'i ght s proh i bi t other,s Ji'om manttJ'actrtr i ng the'scune i I em ;

bl llhen the proctn'entent oJ'criticttlcomponentsJi"om o,specific.tttpplier'

i.s a conctition precedent to hold a contrador to guorantee it,s ptttjet:t
peyfitrnrance, in ctccordctnce v'ith the prutvi,;iorts of it,s conlrcrct; ttr

c) Tho,se,solcl lty an exclusite tleqler or rutmuJtrcltrer which cloes nol
hat,e sub-deulers sellirtg crt lotver prices curcl Jor w'hich rto striluhle

stfi.stilille can lte obtcrined crtmore ucl:,cntlogeous lerun,s lo lhe GoP."

Based on the above criteria, procurement of office and other supplies and tneals

a1cl beverages dicl not t'all under Direct Contracting, instead ordinary supplies should

have been procured at the Procr:rement Service (PS) -DBM. Shopping nlav be resotled

to if iterr,s are not available in the PS while Sma1l-Value Procurement shor.rld be used

fbr other supplies, meals and beverages. Thr-rs, principles ol transprarencl' and

colrpetitiveness of procurement was not achieved, rettdering tlte procuretllent irregttlar

On the othel hand, Section 3 of COA Circular No 97-1,rr-rl strtes th:,: c.'.sir

adt'ances lltav be granted lor "salctrie.s ctntl l{'uge.;. ('r.,itttttttrit4,l.' .i.i,r,''i, 'r'r..jr
Ilrtt2t'ttt'itt tttttl otlter .similut' po)meilt.\ ttt oficiul.; {tttcl entplr.t.t,'t'' .-r.'r.'.'. ' I r'-,' ; --

r,.r.j)f,/t\f,.\ r()1t.\i.\tjng o./ stncil yq'tnen/s -for tttctitienctttce ottt{ olral.riiili;.i,.1r. irrr \ ' -

.r,,litttt /.1 1.,'gcl tortt'ettietttlt by chec'k ot'ore reclttit'etl lrt ht 7'ttr'l ';1"1'.-'r - -. r

t,^r.jttijji.r .,:r'l.e)tiJt!ttt't.; ofthe i!gettL:-\'.fjeld olfjc'e tl rt/ rit, .J-,-.' .. .--'-

,i,r.i.'r'i,rr-i;1 iit rltL .liLlLl v ltett tt i.s intprctcllcatl lu p:t.'. tii, r'r'r''

. ,',',.,;1-i.'I;r1..'.r. tlt'itiililtg ft'i,tllspol'lLltitttl ,fura. n'itel ,tllr'' -:''- -
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axpett.ge'\CftklOlJrcl,axpenseSincttl.t,eclbyof/iciulsttndemplolleesincotnrc('li()ll}1'il/1
o.ll|cicrI lt'ra'cl"

Basecl on this criteria, clisbursement fbr regular supplies, meals atlcl allorvailces

are beyolcl the scope olthe cash advance, hence not allowed. Meani,vhile, paytlents ol
meals and beverages ancl office and other supplies must be paid through check pa1'ab1e

directly to the supplier and not thror-rgh cash advance. Section 2 of COA Circular No.

97-002 datecl February 10, 1997 provides that "All pcryrueilfs ntttst be ntatle btt check".

From the tbregoing table, large amount of expenditures such as items "7, 8, 11,

15, 18 20, 21 and 22 shoulcl have been paid through check and not through casir

advatrce. To clo otherrvise may result to misapplication of goverttment funds atrd ttotl-

reqrittalce of corresponding taxes pursuant to Section 4.114 Revenue Regulation No.

2-98 dated April 17, 1998, to wit:

",\ule 6.f ggr1cl,s cmtl ,sen'ice,s lo lhe glt)ernment,;uliecl trs L'A'f 'shdl he

.vrQject to tt;ilhholclittg taxe,s. (t) In gerterul, pcrymen/s by the gol)efi)mettt ot'

,,,,y ,7' it.s politicctl yfidit,i,sions, instnrmenlulitie,v ctt' agettcie't irtcltrdittg

g(^,et'ptnent-7u,nec! ot' conlrttllec{ corpot'crtions ((-iOCCs) on accrtrrttl ctf its
ptrdwseo.l'gooc{sJiotnseller,soncl,Eervicesrenclerec{h)tcontrcrctrtr,sv'hotu'e
sub.ject trt the value-udded la-v"

Hacl Management consoliclated the procurement fbr office and other sr-rpplies

as w.e1l as procurelnent for meals antl beverages, the rvinning sqlplier for each of

1rro..,r.**ni should have been paid solely through chech and corresponding taxes

shoulcl have been rvithheld and remitted.

It bears to stress that all purctrases should be completely supported r.r'ith

clocuments such as Purchase Orclers, Purchase Request, Request for Qttotations- BAC

Resolutions and Posting Requirement in cornpliance with 2016 Revised Impletllerlting

Rules and Regulations (iRR) of RA 9t84. Also, paymenls must be made payatrle

directly to the rvinning supplier and uot from the Cash Advance drarvu and

correspouding taxes tlust be withheld and remitted.

\\i e recommencled thnt Management cottduct procurement for the

Corporate Planning or any other events of the Agency in strict accortiarrce with

Sectlons -t8.1, 52.1.b ald 53.9 of 20tr6 Revised Implementiltg Rules attd

Reguliltions (IRR) of It,{ 918.1. The supplies needed should be procurecl frorrr tlte
pr.ocureprept Serr.ice (PS) -DBl\{ for ordirtary suplllies attcl shopllirtg nlrrl' be

resot.ted if iterns ilre rlot:rvailnble at the Procuretnent Service (PS) -DB\l attcl/ot'

! p1 ;11|-\'rtl rt e P roctt remelrt for otlter supplies.

PP\lC's \1analrertrent took cognizance on the recot.tltlleti,Jaticrls .'i tlle \irilit
Tear-r-t ,\ rerierr"of the processes and procedures \\rl1 be ittl;err:.i;e:l':" ,"i:,:l:Sel:,t:1.

trr rllSrrre the entbrcetttettt of aprplicable 1an's. ru1es atlci legLili--,llls.l'.;:'";' '. :
,.rrilizatron of cash acir.auces. PP\IC attlrnlecl its a.'tlli.tll::---tr ' - - -.

rr ru-r Cllrillrent 1a \1. s. rLtl e s atlcl regLriat r orls
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Long Outstanding Liabilities - Pl11",281'63

2.BidsecuritybookedunderOtherPayables_tigBondPayableaccount
amounting to P71,408.63 remained outstanding as of Decemtrer 31, 2017 despite

the release of the Notice of Award of the winning bidder contrary to sectian 27'4

of Revisecl Implementing Rules and Regulations (ryR) of R-A' 9184' Also'

performance security booked trnder Guaranty/security Deposit Payable

amounting to P39,87J.00 remained outstanding as of December 3t,2017 due to

the inaction of Management to issue a Certificate of Completion on time despite

the expiration ofthe insurance coverage'

verification in the Schedule of Liabilities disclosed that bid security booked

under Other Payables - Bid Bond Payable account amounting toP71,4O8'63 remained

outstanding as of December 31, 2O]I7 .Details are shown below:

Date Particulars
Contractor/

Service
Provider

Amount
Refere

nce Date of
Contract

Age in
Years

9130

2004

Bid
payment for
Security
Services

Security
Solutions,
Inc. P50,158.63

TY 04-
09-100 lu tll t4

13

8/3 ll
2012

Bid
payment

Motorplaza 2,000.00
JV 12-
08-09 I ag3Ut2 (

t2l3rl
2014

Bid
payment for
Janitorial
Services

McKleene
Premium
Products t4.250.04

JV
2014-
t?-116 121t7114

J

41271

20t7

Bid for the
Manpower
Services

McI(leene
Premium
Products 5,000 00

JV
2017-
04-037 05129117 7ll2

Total P71,408.63

Bid security are posted as guaranty thatthe successful bidder shall' within ten

(10) calendar days frorri ."..ipt oi the nbtice of award, enter into contract with the

ito"rring Entity. Also, Secti on 27 .4 of Revised Implementing Rules and Regulations

(IRR) of R.A. qf ta provides the following provision of refundinglreturning of bid

security:

,,withottt preitdice to the prottisions of the Act and this IRR on the

fotfeitttre o7'Oia searities, iid securities shall be returnetl only cfter the

bielder with the Loutest Calculctetl Responsive Bid {LCRB} or Highest

Rcterl Responsit,e Bi{t (HRRB), as the c&Se r,'{ly be, hcs signerl the

cot trurct rmtl furnishrrt ih" p"rftor*tnce secuitr', except to those de-clayed

b),the BAC ctsfailed or pos/-disryrulified in accordcnrce v'itlt this IRfu uport



.ei)hli.t.\io1 of tt u,r'itten ytoiver rtf their rigltt trt J'ile u reqtte.st Jot'
r e cott si tl e t uti o n ott tlr'ot' pr ote,s t "

Based on the above table, the bid securities became outstanding front set'en

nonths to 13 years which cast doubt on the existence of these liabilities irl the

Financial Statements as of CY 2017, since these liabilities are said to be refunded after

the bidder r.vith the Lowest Calcr:lated Responsive Bid (LCRB) or Highest Rated

Responsir,e Bid (HRRB), as the case may be, has signed the contract and furnished the

p".1b.rrrur"e security. Verification of documents revealed that contracts were already

arvarded to the winning bidder and the latter had already posted its performance

security heuce already sr"rbject to refund'

Nso, perlbrillance security booked under Guaranty/Security Deposit Payable

amoulting to P39,873.00 remained outstanding as of December 31, 2017 as per

verification on the Schedr,rle of Liabilities as follows:

performance security are posted by the Contractor or Service provider to
guarafltee the faithful performance by the latter of its obligations under the contract in

accordance with the Bidding Documents. Also, Section 39.5 of the same law states the

following provision of the release of performance security.

"The perfornrutce seusiA ntay be releosed by the Procaring Entit2 ofter

the isxnnce of the Certificate of Final Acceptance, xtbiect to the

fol I otuin g con di ti ort s :

a) Proaring Entity hss no clsims filed against the ton{ract
e*t'ardee or the xtrety company;
b) It kas no claims for labor and mqterials filed again*rr r}e
cottft'actor; and
Q Orher tefins af the contrcct."

Date Particulars Contractor Amount Reference

Date of
Completi
on Issued

as of
t2l3t/L7

Age
in

Years

813) 12012

Provision of life
insurance coverage
for the period
Auzust 2012-ZAl3

Asian Life
and Gen.
Assurance
Corp. P7.047 .00

JV'2012-
08-091 rtolte {

r013112012

Provision of health
insurance coverage
of PPMC

Fortune
Care 24.381 00

JY 2012-
10-I r7 none )

B/3 r/2013
PPMC employees
life insurance

Asian Life
Insurance 8,445.00

JV l3-08-
072 none 4

Total P39.873.00

j-+
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Glealecl fi-om the table, these perfbrmance securities becaire outstanding lionr

f,our to five years which also cast doubts on the existetrce ol these liabilities in rhe

Financial Statements as of CY 2017 since these liabilities are saici to be released alter

the issualce of the Procuring Entity of the Certificate of Fiual Acceiltarlce

Verification i1 the Contract states that these insurances has only one year co\/eraoe

subject to rene-,val br-rt it was not renewed in the year 2015 because ol prior

ciisallotvalces i1 the CY 2014. trlence, the iusurattce coverage has alreadl' expired by

C\. 2015, therefbre a Cerlif-rcate of Completion should have been issuecl by the

procrrring entity. However, as of CY 2017, no Certiflcate of Completion rvtrs issued,

thus penciing the issuance of the Certiflcate of Final Acceptance, since the letter is

issued only after one year Ii'orn the issuance of the Certificate of Cornpletion.

Hence, Certificate of Final Acceptance rvas not yet issuecl which will be the

basis fbr the reliurcl of the pertbrmance security pursuant to Section 39.5 of tile sanre

lau, Clonsequentlv, the saicl liabilities totalin-q P11i,281.63 remained unpaid which is

a1 ilclication of a rveak internal coutrol in the monitoring of liabilities.

Colsequently, the said liabillties totaling to P I I 1,28 1.63 became an eyesore iu

the Financial Statements and an indication of a weak internal cor"ttrol in the tronitorius
of liabilities.

We recommended that Managcment tatrre the lbltorving courses of action:

il. Commulicate to ttre Iliclclers regarding tlte returtt of'their bicl sectrritf ilr
order to frrcilitate its refuud since contract hacl alre:rclv sigtled attti
performance security rvas ah'eildy posted by the w,inning biclder;

b. [ssue a Certilicate of Cornpletion to the winning Contractor/trttsttrarlce
Provitler since the htter insurance coverage had already expirecll rttrcl

c. Conclqct strict monitoring on the receipt o{ bid bonds and perfor'milllce

boncls in order to ensure proper refurtd/retunl of these boncts to the

bidder or w'innirtg bidders.

Durin-g tire exit conference, Management commented that thev n'ill corlllllv u"itlt

the glven recommetrdatiotls.

B. VALUE-FOR.MONEY

Extensions granted more than the allowable time

3. l{anagement's complacency in firmly imposing the deadline in finishing the

construction of baywalk rvith events center costing P60,156JE3.{6 led to the

evident delay in the completion af the project and consequent\i lfenagsmsal'5
opportunitv to generate revenues therefrom. This is tantamount to
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Nlanagement's rton-compliance with Section 2 of the Presidentitl Decree 1'1-15

(pD 1;45) or the Government Auditing code of the philippines.

The project is firnded by the Bases and conversion Developmeut Ar'rthoritv

(BCDAj being the parent entity of Poro Point Management Corporatiotr (PPMC)

Procurement and implementation of this project was conducted by the PPMC with the

supervision of the BCDA. The original contract cost as per bid of Werr Corporation'

the rvirrning bicl was P57,445.558.82. However, variatiou orders were approved by the

Heari of the Procuring Entity (HOPE) which resulted in a revised contract cost of
p60.156,3g3.46. TablJas herein presented details the chronology/sequence of project

activities:

T-r o f
Activities

/T)are of Contractor's receipt ofNTP)

Date
a6l2sDArs

/lvithin 7 davs. after the receiot of NTP.)fe 0710212015
UQLV VL ULgT I \

r-i+i^i r-\oro nf f-nmnletion without extensions (180 days) 1212812A15

ffiirst Notice of Extension (45 days) 02ltll2016

ffis per Second Notice of Extension (50 days)

Drt. 
"f 

c"*pletion as per Third Notice of Extension (60 days)

04lotl20l6
053 t12016

As shown by the table, the project was sllpposed to be conlpletecl u'ithin i80

clays ending December 28,2015. However, because the requests of the colltractor t-or

ertension were granted tllrice, the construction was ertended b1' 155 da1's rlraking

,t.t rl, 2016 uitt. final date of completion of the project. Despite the e\Ie,sio,s

gr.r,.a the completion of the project remained to be uncerlain' Since the dela-v in the

Io*pt"tion of tlre rvork already exceecled the ten percent (10yb) allo*'able tinre

cluration, Managetnent should have considered the rescission of the contract' SectiL:tr]

8 .1 of Annex E of Revisecl lmplementing Rules and regulations (IRR) of R'A 9184

,,Irr cu.;e thcfi the c{ela1, irt lhe cornplelion o.f the v'ork exceeds u time

clttrcrtictn ecluivulert n fln perceilt (1A;%d of the specified cotttt'crct lime plus

cut.1t /ime extensitttt thil1t grcutletl to the cotttrctctot" lhe ltrocurittg etttil-\'

concerned maJl t,escittcl the cottll,act, ./ol',Jbit lhe conlruclor,s pet..fol.tllullcc

sectrrifi; and takeot,er lhe pt'osectiiort of the pro.iecl ot' cttt'crrd the sctnte lrt ct

qt r cil i {i e ct c on tr uc t or th r tx t g h n e gofi ut e cl c on t r ac t' "

Further, the project r,vas also dr-re for rescission since the delar

conrpletion of the *oi-k i""ut lulated to 579 days exceeded the allon'al'1e terr

tiOg6l the specified contract time plus atlv tinle extensioll d"rh -qi'arltc'l

in the
percent
to the

contractor tot;ling to 34 days. The relevant information is presented on nert pase:

JO



TotalDays of Completion as Specifiecl in the Contract

Acld. TotalNumber of Davs of Ertension (45+50+ei0)

Total Davs of Corilpletiorr

N'Iaxirntttn Thresllolcl of Deln.v (10 Fercent)

Total Days of Dela-v as of 12131 DA17

180

155

33-s

3rl

579

Asicle li-om rescissiofl, the procuring entity concerned has all the right to

fbrf'eit the contractor's perlbrmance secllrity ancl takeover the prosecution ol the

project or arvard the same to a clualifiecl contractor through negotiated contract The

i-arce contention of'the \rP of Lrfrastructure Management and quotirrg, "that tlte-triairl

cause of its nop-completion was clue to the clelayed progress payrnents made by

ppMC to the contracttr," on its face magnifies tl"re want of reasoll and logic otr'the

VP

Section 2 of pD 1445 states that "It is tlra c{eclorecl policlt o./'the Stute tltctt ull

t,e,\ot,,ce.s 6f tlw g(n)et'ttment ,shctll be mctnugetl, expenclecl or tfiilizet{ itt cttcordatrcL

:r,iilr lott,cuti4 regt,taliort.y, curcl sufbgtrurtlec{ ctgctitt.st ltts,g r.tt't'tttrslage through illegul ttt'

irnprrspet' clisyttt.iitictrt, tr,illt ct t'iavr ltt ensrtring fficienc-y', eclilotny curcl c.flectit'erless itt

the tryerotiort,s 0'f.got,erntncilr.'t'he responsibili\) lo toke ctrre thut ,rttch ltttlicf i't

-fctith/-tilttt tttlltere)cl io ,ottt ctireclllt v,i{h the Chie.f'or heut{ rtf lhe got'erntttertl ttguttl'

concarttetl. "

Moreover, the prompt installation of the project u,ottld ltave realized its

objectirres of strengthening the tourisur indr-lstry anrl cretrte illconle that 
'.'ould

redo.rncl to the benet,t of tlre lVlanagement and the BCDA. As the ilotl-cotllpletiorl of

the project hacl causecl inconveniencies to Matragentent r.vhich inciuclecl etl.)orls otiters

the clenial of accornplishing its objectives and generatinq tlore itrcoitle. it t-oLtld

justiti, the intposition of liqLriclated clamages. Presented below i5 thg gottrptrlxtii)ll t)f

ihe eitiuatecliiquiclated damages as ofDecember 3 l, 2011'

Balance of Works Liquidated Damages

Ending
Period

Value of
IJncompleted

Portion

Per Day of
Delny (1/10

of 1%)

No.
of

Days

Amount of
Liquidated
Damages

&D)

LD ;rs ol'tlre
&lonth

N{ay 3 l, 20 l6 6.406,67,1.01 6,406 61 30 192.200 22 Jr:ne i0" 20i6

June i0,2016 2,511,500 00 1 St I io 31 77.856 50 July 3 T,zArc

Juh, 3 l. 20I6 . -11 I SOO r)0 2.42t.54 .]I a l\i-!- \ 1

August 31

2016

ALtqLtst I1
201 b 1,739,500 00 I -l- 1r-

September;tr-
2C115

September
30 l0i6 1.650"500 00 -.''l, l

October 31,

2016



November
30.2Arc 1,1i5,500.00 1.1 15.50 31 34"580.50

December 31

2016

Decernber 3 1.

2016 994.000.00 994.00 31 30,814 00
Januarv 3 1

20t7
January 3 I
20t7 754.000.00 754.00 2B 21.112.00

February 28,
201'l

February 28,

2017 7s4,000 00 754.04 31 23"374.00
March 31

2017

March 31

2017 754.000 00 '754 00 30 )) 6)0 OO April 30. 2017

April 30,
2011 754.000 00 754.00 31 1t 174 00 Mav 3 1.2017

May 3 1,2017 754.000 00 754.00 30 22,620 00 Jr-rne 30, 2017

June 30, 2017 689.000 00 689 00 31 ?r 15900 Julv 3 l.2AI7

July 31,2017 689,000.00 689.00 -)l 21,359.00
Augr-rst 3l

20r'7

August 31

2017 689,000.00 689.00 -) (l 20"67A.00
September 30,

2417

September
3A,2017 689,000.00 689.00 31 21 ,3 59 00

October 31

2017

October 3 1,

2017 584,000.00 584.00 30 17.520 00
November i0,

2017

Noveurber
30.2017 584,000.00 584.00 31 i 8" 10.1.00

Decernber 3I
2011

TOTAL 579 P782,604.22

Section 8.1 of Anner E of the Revised IRR of RA 9184 states the fbllou,ing
provisious for liquidated darnages:

"Ltrhere lhe utnlractttr refirses or Jcril.s lo .scttisfcrctorilll complele lhe tt'ttrli
yilhitt lhe speci/'ied controct lime, plus ctrtlt Lime externiorr chtl.1'gronlecl

cnd is hereby in de.futilt ttnc{et' the conlrttct, the conlrLtctot' ,shcrlI pttl; tlte

proctl.irtg enlitl;.for. lirytitloted clamctge,s, ctncl nol btt tyal.l of Pertolhl, cttt

amototl, cr,s prot,iclecl in the conc{iliorr,s of contocl, equol trt ut leust rsttc

tenth (l/10) of'one (1) percent r{the cor't of'the unperJbrnteil portiqn of
the works.fbr et'e4' iltrY of deluY. "

It is ernphasized that one of the main objectives of the pr-oject is tu strelrgtllelr

tfue tourism inclustry in the Poro Point Freeporl Econott-tc Zone tPPFEZT :tr.1

seneration of proceeds for remittance to BCDA through leasins of sta11s :trii .:i.c-
qelteratillg activities. Had the project been completed uithitr the specr--rc.i ..:'.'..

various income generating activities and projects shoLrld hare 't.',rt.-. .,r--- :,...-..'-- '-
generate proceeds for remittance to the BCDA. Also- delavS arrii 1r: ":.;l.r:r'.' ---:r -':-::

sholrld have been avoided.
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It could not be stressed adequately that the partiality of the Management towards

contractor manifested by the extensions granted thrice totaling 155 days unfavorably
affected the interest of the Poro Point Management Corporation (PPMC). The

extensions violated Section 8.4 of Annex E of Revised Implementing Rules and

regulations (IRR) of R.A 9184.

'\4le recommended that Management cease to tre complacent and compel

the contractor to immediately finish the project. It is also recommended that the
unjustified delay of the contractor be imposed with liquidated damages as to
penalize the imprudence exhibited by the latter as required under Section 8.1 of
Annex E of the Revised IRR of RA 9184.

Management commented that they are currently reviewing all available legal

actions for the completion of the project pursuant to the 2016 Revised Implementing

Rules and Regulations Act 9184 and other applicable laws and regulation.

C. STATUS OF AUDIT SUSPEI\SION{S, DISALLOWAI\CES ANI)
CHARGES FOR CY 2OI1

Presented below is the summary of receipts and settlements of audit suspensions,

disallowances and charges for CY 2017'.

Disailowances totaling to P 1,234,904.05 represents disallowed benefits for CY

2014 that lacli legal basis and are under appeal.

Particulars
Beginning
Balance

(January 1,

20171

This Period January 1,

2017 to December 31,2017
Ending
Balance

(December 31,
2At7\NS/ND/NC F[SSDC

Notice of
Suspension P 0.00 P0 00 P0.00 P 0.00

Notice of
Disallowance t.234.904.05 0.00 0.00 t,234,S0-l 05

Notice of Charge 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total P1,234,904.05 P0.00 P0.00 P1"234.90.1.05

i9
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PART III

STATUS OF PRIOR YEARS' AUDIT
RECOMMENI}ATIOlTS



PART IIT-STATLTS OF PRIOR YEARS'
ALTD TT RE C ON,I N{ENDATIOI{S

Hereulcler is the status of iirplementation of recommendatiotts made in relation

to the atrdit of the accourlts and transactiorrs of the CY 2011.

Audit Observations
and Recomrnendations Reference

Management
Action

Status of
Implementation

(tr'r, Pr, Nr)

Reason for
Partial or Non-
Imnlementation

l. Wealt internal
control ott tlte collection
policy and procedure on

airport fees of the agetlcY

resulted in large anlount

of past due Assets Held
in Trust - Accouuts
Receivable - Trade aged

more than sirtY daYs

at-r"tounting to
P'711,696 19 as of
Deceurber 31" 2016.
Thus, collectiou eftbrls of
the agency rernained
inadequate.

We have recomtnended

that N{anagetnetlt

establislr a lnore stl'ict

collection policY and

procedttre oll r at iotts

airport fees. We have also

recommended that
mallagelttellt corttiuue

sending deuraud letters to

2AI6
AAR

Various demand
letter were sent to
the defaulting
customers.

defaulting clients.

Fufiher, we have also

recommended
mal1agen1e1lt to elevate

the rtratter to the Bases

Cortversiot-t Devel oPtletrt
Ar-rthoritv tbr Possrble
t,rite-otf c,i the se

receir-a'l1es

FI

I T lt c J.t:l al''i cl L-ril

:l:-l-c.l:.---.'.'

5-,':-r-.t;,-:'l: \r;l1 e\ iai

2016
AAR

The prospective

surveyor of the
Asency is alreadY

li,)
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C\' 2016 all1oll11ting to

P 170,000.00 was

::*'arded directlY to a

arlvate educational

institution rvhich is rtot

PhiIGEPS registered

;outrary to Section 8.5.1

of 2016 R.A. 9184 and its

implementing rules and

regulations (IRR), hence

aitecting the legalitY and

propriety of the

transactiotl.

We have recourmeuded

that Managetlent strictiY

rbllow/obserre Section

53.6 ancl Section 8.5.1 of
2016 RA E184 and its
irnplementing rules and

lations
3. The AgencY could
have avoided the

payment of P50,080.00 as

surcharge fbr fringe

benefit tax Pefiaining to

CY 20A7 had the AgencY

withheld and remitted the

cotrect amount of taxes

or1 tirne colltrary to
Section 2.57.A of BIR
Revenue Regulation No.

2-98 dated APril 17 
"

1998. Hence, it is a clear

indication of
negliqertceilaritY on the
'.ran of the Persottnel itl
.:\arce tasked with

:.',::':1,.::u: ol la\
: :. -:-,.. -'ll : i ille agetlcr

The agency became

prudent on their tax
liabilities incurring
no surcharges this
cY 2017.

2Ar6
AAR

PhiIGEPS
registered.

-i1



7

alloullt ol taxes to avoicl

any illterest/penaltv
charges uttder
meritorious
circumstartces tirat mat'be
imposed in the t'utule
Likervise, l.ttaltagenlent

should be retttinded of
the pror isious ol' Sectiort

2 5'7 A of Revettue

Regulatior.rs No. 2-98 that
in case of under or nol-]-

withholding, the

deficiency tar shal1 be

coliected fi'oirr the

withhoiding agent,

parlicularly the personnel

concerned in the

corllputation of taxes.
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